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COMMERCE

6. At all times material hereto, defendant was engaged in the business of selling and

financing telecommunications services and related products to small businesscs and others, in or

affecting commerce, as “commerce” 15 defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.5.C. § 44.
DEFENDANT’S BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
7. NorVergence's principal busincss since at least 2002, and continuing until shortly
before its bankruptey filing in July 2004, has been reselling telecommunications services,
purchascd from common carriers or others, principally to small businesses, non-profit
organizations, churches, and mumcipalities. NorVergence markcted its services as integrated,
long-term packages, including landline and ccllular telephone service and Internet access,

8. NorVergence set its price for the service packages without regard to its cost of
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used to connect telephone equipment to a long-distance provider’s T-1 or similar data line. It is
wholly unrelated to cellular phone access. Tt does not establish or change the costs of the long

distance service significantly, if at all. It cannot provide unlimited minutes, and NorVergence

FROCRC v N 00 10y 8 Eh (a7 LICP IR 1l I~ T | Wige A | il (Wl V. VI

Tt {8 W

{ 'f‘,n 1




The total cost to the customer was $24,000 to $340,000 for “renting” the $1,500 Matrix box.
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15.  The pnice of the rental agreement had nothing to do with the cost of the Matrix.

NorVergence calculaled the amount so the total charge for tclecommunications services
NorVergence promised to provide would add up to 30% less than the customers™ previous hills.

16.  After obtaining the customer’s signature on the various “non-binding”
applications, forms, and the rental agrecment, NorVergence sold or assigned the rental agreement
to a third-party finance company, either for the full five-year term or for some part of that term.
The finance company paid NorVergence a discounted portion of the total rental price. The FTC
believes that NorVergence received over $200 million in upfront payments for the rental
agreements it sold or assigned to various finance companies.

17. NorVergence included in the rental agreements various provisions that would
make them more readily saleable. For example, they contained so-called “hell or high water”

waiver of defenses clauses. These purport to require the customer to pay the full amount
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promised services.
21.  Initially, NorVergenec did provide those below cost services to some of its early

customers. For others the Matrix installation or connection was never completed and functional.
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thosc agreements. It these contracts are assigned or sold, either by the Chapter 7 trustee or by

NorVereence it the bankrunteyg actinn is dismissed. the nunsooasc=conld he sihiartdn thesapos




27. In truth and 1n fact:
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a. That it had no long-term commitment from any service provider for the
gervices it was promising to provide to its customers.
b. That the equipment covered by the rental agreement would be of little or no
value to the customer if NorVergence failed to provide the promised
telecommunications services.
31.  Thesc facts would have been material to consumers in their contracting with
NorVergence for services and rental of the equipment. The failure to disclosc these facts, in light
of the representations made in Paragraph 29 above, 1s a deceptive act or practice in violation of

Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

COUNT III
32, Innumerous instances, in connection with the deccptive sale and financing of
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provides the promised telecommunications services; and

b. File collection suits in distant forums,

NorVergence provided others with the means and instrumentalities for the commission of

deceptive or unfair acts or practices.

35.  Therefore, defendant’s practices, as set forth in paragraph 34, constitutc deceptive
or unfair acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.8.C. § 45(a).

CONSUMER INJURY

36.  Consumers throughout the Umited States have suffered substantial monetary loss
as a result of defendant’s unlawful acts or practices. In addition, defendant has been unjustly
enriched as a result of its unlawful practiccs. Absent injunctive telief by this Court, and
depending on the proccedings in and outcome of the bankruptey case, defendant may continue to
injure consumers and to harm the public interest.

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF

37. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 153 U.8.C. § 53(b), empowers the Court to grant
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